
Regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Village of Brockport was held in the Conference 
Room, Municipal Building, 49 State Street, Brockport, New York, January 3, 2006 at 7:00pm. 
 
PRESENT: Mayor Morton Wexler, Trustee Maria C. Castańeda, Trustee David J. Wagenhauser, 
Trustee Mary Jo Nayman, DPW Superintendent Harry G. Donahue, Building/Zoning Officer Scott C. 
Zarnstorff, Treasurer / Village Manager Ian M. Coyle, Clerk Leslie A. Morelli. 
 
EXCUSED:  Trustee/Vice Mayor Carrie L. Maziarz, Police Chief Daniel P. Varrenti, Fire Chief Laurence 
C. Vaughan 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Jim & Joan Hamlin, Linda Borrayo, Norm GianCursio, Fred Webster, Bob Webster, 
Jack Wahl, Kathy Snyder, Joanne Marcello, Mary Ann Rogers.  
    
CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Wexler called the meeting to order and led the Pledge of Allegiance.  He 
wished everyone a Happy and Healthy New Year. 
 
REVIEW OF MEETING MINUTES:  Mayor Wexler called for any additions or corrections to the minutes 
of the regular meeting held December 19, 2005.   
 

 Trustee Castańeda moved, Trustee Nayman seconded, unanimously carried that the minutes of 
the meeting held December 19, 2005, be approved as written. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS:  None 
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION MEETINGS:  None 
 
GUESTS:  None 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
1.  Joan Hamlin of 50 Park Avenue said she has a couple of concerns regarding signage.  The first is    
       the large Rich Miller real estate sign attached to the house at 23 N. Main Street.  She said other     
         realtors have been told to take down signs that are too large or in the wrong location.  The second 
is       the small sign on Fayette Street that was up for a long time asking for fill dirt.  She said when she 
          asked she was told the fill dirt was to fill in a pool.  She said this brings up an additional concern  
           regarding safety since it took a long time to fill in the hole.  The third is the status of portable 
signs in       the downtown business district.  She said 20 months ago a letter was sent to the 
merchants stating        that portable signs were not allowed per current law.  The former Village 
Attorney confirmed that             they were illegal per Village code.  She said she recalls the Village 
response was that the portable          signs, “would be gone tomorrow”.  She said they’re not.  J. Hamlin 
said she spoke to a member of          the Code Review Committee and found that they have not yet 
reviewed that chapter and that they          hoped to bring all the proposed revisions to the Village Board 
as a whole.  She expressed concern         that it has been 2 summers, coming up on 3 that this code 
has not been enforced.  She said she            has been accused of being anti-business and is not.  She 
said she is for code enforcement.  She           said the Village Board made an exception last spring to 
revise the dog chapter of the code.  She             suggests they place revising the sign code section of 
the code separately and not wait for the Code        Review Committee to get through the entire code.  
This could take quite a while. 
 
      J. Hamlin asked the status of the proposed local laws regarding rental housing and amortization.  A 
       public hearing was held last May, various people including attorneys submitted written comments   
        and questions and were promised a written response.  She asked if the Village provided written     
         responses and where the proposal stands. 
 
      Regarding her signage concerns, Mayor Wexler responded that he spoke to S. Zarnstorff regarding 
      the large realty sign at 23 N. Main Street.  This property, although residential, is in business zoning 
        which goes by a different section of the code.   S. Zarnstorff said the code is unclear and he put in 
a       memo to Deputy Village Attorney Aloi a couple of weeks ago asking for feedback and clarification. 
         He hopes to get a response within the week.  Regarding portable signs, Mayor Wexler recalls the 
          concerns of a letter sent out in April 2004 and agreed that maybe the Village Board should seek  
           moving the revision of the sign code to the forefront.  He said it would be discussed at the 
monthly          department head’s meeting tomorrow.  Trustee Castańeda asked S. Zarnstorff if he had 
discussed         portable signage with the downtown merchants.  S. Zarnstorff said he had with many of 
them.  He          said some wish to use portable A-frame signs when they are open.  The Code Review 
Committee          briefly discussed this and would consider recommending portable signs with 
conditions.  Trustee            Wagenhauser said from his understanding the recommended updates could 
be 6 to 12 months              away. 
 
      Trustee Nayman agreed that the sign at 23 N. Main Street is awfully big.  S. Zarnstorff tried to          
       explain the code, which is overly generous regarding sign size.  Trustee Nayman said it is similar 
to        the size of signage at Merchant Street Smoke House, but it’s on a home.  S. Zarnstorff said it is 
in          business zoning (same as the smokehouse) and that the code doesn’t differentiate the use.  S. 



              Zarnstorff said the smokehouse had to apply to the Village Board for signs in excess of the 
code.           Mayor Wexler said it passed, but recalls that there were differing opinions on the Village 
Board.   
MINUTES OF MEETING HELD January 3, 2006 continued………………………………………..page 2 
 
      Trustee Wagenhauser asked if Rich Miller had been approached.  S. Zarnstorff said he has been    
       made aware of the concern, but the Village needs to be on solid ground to require it be removed.   
         Trustee Castańeda asked what the consequences to R. Miller would be.  S. Zarnstorff said it        
           depends how Deputy Village Attorney Aloi interprets the code.  If it is deemed acceptable, then 
there       is no action.  If not, he will issue communication requesting compliance.  Trustee Nayman 
asked if         he had measured the sign.  S. Zarnstorff said it is about 35 to 40 square feet.  Trustee 
Nayman              asked that the sign be measured again.  S. Zarnstorff explained that the code bases it 
on the linear        footage of the frontage of the building and whether it is a corner lot can make a 
difference.  Trustee        Nayman expressed concern that signs of that size could be allowed in the 
downtown business                district.   S. Zarnstorff said fortunately most business owners have limited 
frontage and have not             requested huge signs.  He said the code should differ according to 
location as well as a number of         other factors.  For example, Ryan’s Big M should be allowed larger 
signage than a small Main Street       shop.  Trustee Nayman said she drives by the 23 N. Main Street 
sign daily and it offends her.   
     
      J. Hamlin asked if the sign law could be addressed soon so it could be in effect for this summer.      
       Trustee Castańeda suggested the Village Board ask the Code Review Committee to make it a        
        priority.   
 
      Regarding the proposed local laws related to amortization of rental housing, Mayor Wexler said that 
      proposal and public hearing was held under the prior administration.  Three of five Board members 
       are new.  The current Board has not discussed this.  He said he has been asked by others              
        including SUNY Brockport officials since they are concerned of the affect it would have on student 
         housing.  He said he is unaware of the Village promising written responses to questions.  Clerk     
          Morelli said she has a file on the public hearing and correspondence received, but that to her       
           knowledge, the Village never issued written responses. 
 
      J. Hamlin asked if the Village considers it a dead issue.  Mayor Wexler said if not dead, then on life 
       support.  Trustee Nayman asked if the new Board members could get copies of the file.  Clerk        
        Morelli said yes.  Manager Coyle said the proposals and public hearing minutes are also on the     
         Village website.  Trustee Wagenhauser suggested it be discussed at the next workshop. 
 
2.  Jim Hamlin of 50 Park Avenue asked the status of the roof replacement at Fire Department               
      Headquarters at 38 Market Street.  Superintendent Donahue said the contractor vacuumed the 
rocks      off and the tires are back on.  The project is on hold for the winter. 
 
3.  Kathy Snyder of Lyman Street asked the status of the Visitor’s Center certification.  Has it been        
       done?  Who will do it?  What will be the cost?  Manager Coyle said she is referring to the SVES 
soil       vapor barrier extraction system of the Welcome Center that was done by former consultant Ken 
Pike      of Earthworks Environmental.  He said there is question of Monroe County Health Department  
              requiring certification of it.  It has not yet been done.  Manager Coyle said he is still looking into 
it. 
 
     K. Snyder also referred to the 211 waiver for the Police Chief.  She said it was signed when the        
      contract was signed in 2002 and would have been applied for again in 2004.  She asked if it was     
       signed then.  Trustee Wagenhauser said yes, by then-Mayor Matela.  K. Snyder asked if it came    
         before the Village Board at that time.  Mayor Wexler said no.  K. Snyder asked if it should have.    
          Mayor Wexler said yes, it should have been brought to the Village Board to approve and 
authorize         the Mayor to sign it. 
 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS: 
A. PUBLIC WORKS – Superintendent Harry G. Donahue  

1. Storm Sewer System map – Superintendent Donahue said the DPW currently does not have a 
Village-wide storm sewer map.  Therefore, every time they have a problem with a storm sewer, 
it is a guessing game as to how and where it funs.  Unless they have had a prior problem with 
that particular storm sewer, it makes it very difficult for us to do their job in a timely manner.  
Another reason it is needed is that part of the requirements for the Monroe County Storm water 
Coalition of which the Village belongs is that every municipality must have these documents 
available for review by the state and federal governments.  Chatfield Engineers has proposed 
to assist the Village in preparing a base storm sewer system map.  The cost of this work will be 
on an hourly basis and will not exceed $2,500.  This is a very minimal price to pay for the 
advantages that the Department will get out of this now and in the future.  H. Donahue said also 
in the very near future they will be having interns working through the coalition at no cost to the 
Village to GPS locate and put on a map all of the 533 catch basins. 

 
Trustee Castańeda asked if there are any previous records.  H. Donahue said no map, just bits 



and pieces of information, mostly of the new housing tracts since it is now required.  Trustee 
Wagenhauser asked if Chatfield Engineers was looking to do this as part of the Capital 
Improvement Plan.  H. Donahue said it will help with the CIP, but will be required for the 
Monroe County Storm water Coalition. 

 
 
MINUTES OF MEETING HELD January 3, 2006 continued……………………………………….page 3 
 
→ Trustee Wagenhauser moved, Trustee Castańeda seconded, to accept the proposal of Chatfield 
Engineers to complete the base mapping work for the Storm Sewer System Map on an hourly basis, 
not to exceed $2,500. 
 

2. Water System Map & Hydraulic Computer Model Updates – Superintendent Donahue said the 
Village-wide water system map has not been updated since 1996.  A lot of improvements have 
been made to the water system since then.  These as well as visual digs in different areas have 
been documented and need to be put on the new map allowing the current and future staff an 
up-to-date map.  Chatfield Engineers has proposed to complete the updates on an hourly 
basis, not to exceed $2,000.  This is a minimal price to pay considering how important the map 
is.  The money would come out of the water budget and not affect the Village budget. 
 
Trustee Wagenhauser commented that H. Donahue has done a marvelous job in the short time 
he has been Superintendent.  The Village’s infrastructure has taken a beating over the years 
and he can imagine that it is hard to work in pre-historic conditions when you don’t know 
exactly where everything is located.    

 
→ Trustee Castańeda moved, Trustee Wagenhauser seconded, unanimously carried to accept the 
proposal of Chatfield Engineers to complete the updates to the Water System Map and Hydraulic 
Computer Model on an hourly basis not to exceed $2,000. 
 

3. Letter of Credit Release of $4,964.50 – Sunflower Landing – Superintendent Donahue asked 
the Board to approve the letter of credit release of $4,964.50 for the sanitary sewer crossing at 
East Avenue at Sunflower Landing.  The work is complete and done to specifications per the 
Village Engineer’s inspector.  Therefore, he, Manager Coyle and Village Engineer recommend 
the release. 
 
Trustee Nayman asked the name of the Village Engineer’s inspector.  H. Donahue said Mike 
Beady. 

 
→ Trustee Wagenhauser moved, Trustee Castańeda seconded, unanimously carried authorizing the 
release of $4,964.50 from the Sunflower Landing letter of credit for the sanitary sewer crossing on East 
Avenue. 
 

4. Replacement of Water Superintendent’s truck – Superintendent Donahue said the previous 
Board of Water Commissioners authorized the funding for the truck replacement Water 
Superintendent Rick Herzog for the 2005-06 budget year.  The total cost of this would be 
$27,341.60 that includes a 4-wheel drive truck with snowplow.  It would replace the 1998 
Dodge pickup that has begun to nickel and dime the Village with repairs and has a good 
possibility that something major is about to happen with the engine.  They have experienced 
some transmission problems lately as well.  The new pickup is on state bid and will come from 
Motors Fleet, where recent police cars have come from.  Money for this truck will come out of 
the water budget and will not affect the Village tax fund.  In the past the Water Department has 
purchased many pieces of equipment for the DPW and has helped keep the Village budget 
down. 
 
Trustee Nayman asked if the Village has to go out to bid.  H. Donahue said it is actually ON 
state bid. 

 
→ Trustee Castańeda moved, Trustee Wagenhauser seconded, unanimously carried authorizing the 
purchase of a new 4-wheel drive pick up truck with snowplow on state bid at $27,341.60 from Motors 
Fleet for use by the Water Superintendent. 
 
        5.   APWA Award – Mayor Wexler shared that the Harvester Park and Welcome Center is the 
2005               recipient of the Project of the Year Award for Structural Projects from the American 
Public                       Works Association – Monroe County / Genesee Valley Branch.  The project of the 
year award                 was established to promote excellence in the management and administration of 
public works                 projects by recognizing the alliance between the managing agency, the 
engineer and a                            contractor who together have led to a successful completion of a 
public works project.  Mayor                 Wexler commended H. Donahue and the DPW for their efforts 
and congratulated them on this                award that will be presented at a banquet later this month.  
Applause. 
                                                                                



B.   POLICE DEPARTMENT – Chief Daniel P. Varrenti (excused) 
Mayor Wexler reported that Chief Varrenti had knee surgery today and wished him a speedy 
recovery. 
   

C. BUILDING / ZONING / CODE ENFORCEMENT - Scott C. Zarnstorff 
1. Monthly Reports – August – December Applications – S. Zarnstorff shared that in 2005 his       

 office took in 220 various applications compared to 145 in 2004.  This generated $24,768 in    
  fees.  The value of construction totals 1.4 million dollars which includes large projects such as 
  
 

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD January 3, 2006 continued……………………………………….page 4  
 
              Ryan’s Big M expansion, Weinstein Dental Group building and 5 new homes.  He said,             
               unfortunately, the new home market wasn’t as strong as the developers of Remington Woods 
                and McCormick Place hoped for.  If interest rates remain stable and utility costs do not 
continue               to rise, maybe they will have better luck in 2006.   
 
              S. Zarnstorff said with the addition of a part-time clerk and new software, record keeping is      
                improving, clerical work is getting done, and he has been able to increase the number of 
rental               inspections and certificates of occupancy issued since he has more time in the field.  
Trustee                  Maziarz helped get the ball rolling last year by starting to compile c of o status 
information. 
 
              Trustee Nayman said the Village always brings up rental properties, but wonders if we are       
                taking time to look at all home and the standards they must follow.  S. Zarnstorff said              
                 unfortunately, the reality is that a lot of his time is spent on rental housing.  If a resident has 
a                  complaint about any property, it is addressed as best possible.  Trustee Nayman said 
there are               several single family homes in her area that could be addressed.     
 
              Mary Ann Rogers and Joanne Marcello from the audience asked Trustee Nayman to clarify      
               what she means.  Trustee Nayman said building/zoning/code enforcement should be looking 
at               the whole Village, particularly when something is obvious.  Trustee Castańeda commented 
that               the code should be enforced across the Board.  S. Zarnstorff was provided with a part 
time                     clerk to allow him to be in the field more.  She asked of the 220 applications how 
many related                to rentals.  S. Zarnstorff said approximately 100.  S. Zarnstorff said it has only 
been a few                        months, but in that short time he is seeing the benefits.  He said he has goals 
for 2006 that                     cover all areas.  The first ¾ of the calendar year it was just he and part time 
inspector L.                          Vaughan for 12 to 15 hours per work.  The part time clerk has and will 
continue to make a big                 difference.   
 
              S. Zarnstorff said they are still compiling the inspection reports for the same August through     
               December time period.  Those will be forthcoming. 
 
D.  FIRE /AMBULANCE / COMMUNICATIONS - Chief Laurence C. Vaughan (excused) 
       1.   Membership Adds/Drops/Transfers – In the Chief’s absence, Manager Coyle asked the Board  
              to consider approving the following drop: Marcia Muller and the following add: James Williams 
               to company 2 fire only.  Please note that Colin Ryan who was added at the last meeting is       
                ambulance only. 
 
→   Trustee Castańeda moved, Trustee Nayman seconded, unanimously carried approving the 
previously mentioned drop and adds. 
 

2. Call Load – Fire incidents for 2005 = 920 
                         EMS calls for 2005 = 1,646 
                         Total = 2,566 (This is down from 2,756 in 2004) 
 
      Miscellaneous:  All new and old officers are in place for the New Year.  They are all busy 
getting       duties assigned, offices set up and getting everyone up to speed with department 
operations.          The new ambulance has an expected delivery in February.  Work is continuing on 
getting the           new Chief’s vehicles set up.  The first unit is projected to be ready by January 
20th with the               second due about February 1st, all depending on timely delivery of parts 
equipment.  New part          time Fire Department custodian Richard Dalheim is working out very 
nicely.  The station is                starting to look good again and on-hand supplies are being 
maintained at adequate usage               levels. 
       
3. Accept resignation of several part time dispatchers – Manager Coyle shared that according to 

payroll records, 9 part time dispatchers have not put any hours in in the last 8 months to 3 
years.  Therefore, they were sent a letter asking to sign off on their resignation so we can 
remove them from the employee rolls and give others a hiring opportunity. Of the 9, 6 signed off 
on their resignation, 1 never responded, but was informed that a non-response would be 
treated as a resignation, and 2 contacted the Village Office and indicated that they wish to 



remain and will put in some hours. 
 

→ Trustee Castańeda moved, Trustee Wagenhauser seconded, unanimously carried to accept the 
resignation of the following as part time dispatchers:  Daniel Azzolina, Charles Connors, James 
Coopenberg, Paul Dentino, Michael Tsoukatos, Gregory Wing, and Robert Zink. 
 
E.  TREASURER / VILLAGE MANAGER - Ian M. Coyle – No report. 
 
F.   CLERK - Leslie A. Morelli – No report. 
 
G.   ATTORNEY – Thomas D. Calandra / DEPUTY ATTORNEY – Frank A. Aloi  

 
MINUTES OF MEETING HELD January 3, 2006 continued………………………………………..page 5 

 
H.   ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT –  

 
SUPPORT BOARDS REPORTS:  
A.   PLANNING BOARD – Chair R. Scott Winner  
B.   LIBRARY BOARD – President Matthew Minor   
C.   ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS - Chair John Bush  
 
VILLAGE BOARD REPORTS: 
A.  Trustee/Vice Mayor Maziarz (excused) 
 
B.  Trustee Castańeda – No report. 

 
C. Trustee Wagenhauser  

1. Holiday Lights / Decorating – Trustee Wagenhauser thanked all those who participated.  The   
        Village looked great. 
 
2. Payroll – Trustee Wagenhauser thanked Manager Coyle and Deputy Clerk Coopenberg for  
        their efforts in looking into cost cutting as it relates to payroll vendors.  They have decided to  
        stay with the current vendor having negotiated a 15 – 16% cost decrease.  
 
3.   Cell Phones – Trustee Wagenhauser thanked Manager Coyle for his efforts in looking into cost 
      cutting as it relates to cell phone plans.  Plans best suited for the Village are scheduled to 
begin       next week. 
 

D.    Trustee Nayman  
        1.   Lakeside Child Care Center – Trustee Nayman announced that through her attending at          
                meetings she has learned that volunteers are needed to paint 6 rooms the weekends of         
                 January 14 and 15 and 21 and 22.  Paint and supplies will be provided.  Those interested     
                   should contact Nicky Strubble at 637-2930.  Trustee Castańeda suggested to Manager 
Coyle                 that he put this in the newsletter that will be coming out soon. 
 
E.     Mayor Wexler  

1. Former DPW Employee Gary Rheinwald – Mayor Wexler said the Village was unaware that he 
had re-married. 
 

→ Trustee Castańeda moved, Trustee Nayman seconded, unanimously carried to amend the 
agreement made December 5th to include 2-person health and dental coverage, not single coverage.   
 

2. Renew annual Educable contract 1/1/06 to 12/31/06 – Mayor Wexler asked that the annual 
contract be renewed.  It allows for public broadcast Monday through Friday 6pm – 10pm.  
Trustee Castańeda asked if the Village could use additional airtime to promote Brockport.  
Manager Coyle said yes and reminded the Board of his recommendations.  Manager Coyle 
said it costs $2,900, which is a portion of the franchise fees. 

 
→ Trustee Castańeda moved, Trustee Wagenhauser seconded, unanimously carried to renew the 
annual Educable contract and authorize the Mayor to sign it. 
 

3. Get Well Wishes – Mayor Wexler shared that Village Historian Jackie Morris’s husband,           
 Raymond Morris, a regular meeting attendee, is in the hospital recuperating from heart 
surgery. The Village’s hopes and prayers are with him. 
 

4. Next Meeting – Mayor Wexler reminded everyone that the next Village Board meeting would 
be Tuesday, January 17th since Monday, January 16th is a holiday. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 

1. Kathy Snyder of Lyman Street asked the total cost of the Welcome Center and Harvester Park 
Improvement Project.  Manager Coyle said the two projects totaled $620,000 with the Village’s 



portion being $440,000.  The rest came from grant monies. 
 
K. Snyder asked if FOIL applications have decreased since June.  Clerk Morelli said they have. 

 
AUDIT: 

 Trustee Maziarz moved, Trustee Nayman seconded, unanimously carried that the bills be allowed 
and paid upon audit. 

 
Village 
Date Check #   Amount 
12/20/05 172639  98.62 
12/21/05 172641  2,279.62 
12/28/05 172642  206.00 

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD January 3, 2006 continued………………………………………..page 6 
 

12/29/05 172645  4,600.00 
12/30/05 172654-172691 38,839.49 
1/3/06 172707-172714 7,115.14 
1/3/06 172716  100.00 

 
Fire 

 12/12/05 172559  100.00 
 12/21/05 172640  36.88 
 12/27/05 172644  100.00 
 1/3/06 172692-172704 4,579.45 
 1/3/06 172715  29,552.68 
 

Third Party Billing  
12/21/05 000682  156.12 
1/3/06 000684-000693 6,764.22 
1/3/06 000694  2,197.84 

 
Capital Projects 
1/3/06 001972  10,937.70 

 
Sewer 
1/3/06 001068-001069 227.00 
 
Water  

       12/21/05  001300  40.24 
        1/3/06  001302-001308 3,873.27 
        1/3/06  001309  10,075.22 
       
ADJOURNMENT: 

 Trustee Castańeda moved, Trustee Wagenhauser seconded, unanimously carried that the 
meeting be adjourned at 8:05pm. 

 
__________________________ 
Leslie Ann Morelli, Village Clerk 

 


